ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 25, 2003
1: 10 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair
Senator Scott Ogan, Vice Chair
Senat or CGene Therri aul t
Senat or Johnny Ellis

Senator Hollis French

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 8
"An Act relating to tanpering with public records.”
HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO 55
"An Act relating to tanpering with public records.”
HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 161
"An Act relating to certain civil actions brought by the
attorney general under nonopoly and restraint of trade statutes;
relating to the award of danages in actions brought under those
statutes; and providing for an effective date.™

MOVED SB 161 OUT OF COWM TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 171
"An Act relating to certain suits and clains by nenbers of the
mlitary services or regarding acts or omssions of the
organized mlitia; relating to liability arising out of certain
search and rescue, civil defense, honeland security, and fire
managenment and firefighting activities; and providing for an
effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 98

"An Act relating to civil liability for guest passengers on an

aircraft or watercraft; and providing for an effective date."
MOVED CSSB 98( TRA) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- April 25, 2003



PREVI QUS ACTI ON

SB 8 - See HESS m nutes dated 3/5/03, 3/10/03 and 3/24/03.

SB 55 - See HESS mi nutes dated 3/5/03, 3/10/03 and 3/24/03.

SB 161 - No previous action to record.

SB 171 - No previous action to record.

SB 98 - See Transportation m nutes dated 4/8/ 03 and Judiciary
m nut es dated 4/23/03

W TNESS REG STER

Ms. Karen MCart hy

Staff to Senator Bunde

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commrented on SB 98

M. Ri chard Benavi das

Staff to Senator Davis

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 8

Senat or Fred Dyson

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 55

M. Ed Sniffen, Assistant Attorney General
Departnent of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 161

Ms. Gail Voigtlander, Assistant Attorney Ceneral
Departnent of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 171

Comm ssioner Bill Tandeske

Department of Public Safety

PO Box 111200

Juneau, AK 99811-1200

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 171

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- April 25, 2003



M. Jeff Jahnke, State Forester

Di vision of Forestry

Depart ment of Natural Resources

400 W1 | oughby Ave.

Juneau, AK 99801-1724

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 171

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-30, SIDE A

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:10 p.m Senators QOgan, French
and Chair Seekins were present. Senator Therriault arrived as

the neeting was in progress.

SB  98-LIABILITY: PLANE AND BOAT PASSENGERS

CHAI R RALPH SEEKI NS announced SB 98 to be up for consideration
He noted that Section 2 deals with the definition of conmercial
pur poses and asked if that means not for hire.

M5. KAREN MCCARTHY, staff to Senator Bunde, sponsor, replied
yes, given federal strictures with regard to the cost of flights
and non-conmerci al boat owners.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked if there is a definition in statute anywhere
of commerci al purposes or are they relying on the FAA

M5. MCCARTHY replied that she didn't know if there is any other
definition in statute.

SENATOR OGAN said page 2, line 30 of the bill says,

The owner of the watercraft is |iable for injury or
damage caused by negligent operation of the owner's
wat ercraft where the negligence consists of violation
of state statute or neglecting to observe ordinary
care.

He was concerned that soneone could argue that bootl eggi ng was a
comerci al purpose and, therefore, is not illegal.

SENATOR FRENCH responded that that would be either gross

negligence or reckless or intentional msconduct under section
9.65.112(b) (1) (a).

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- April 25, 2003



CHAIR SEEKINS said he didn't think it was the intent of the
sponsor to allow wong doers to be covered by limtations of
liability.

1:15 - 1:16 p.m - at ease
SENATOR OGAN noved CSSB 98(TRA), version \H, fromconmmttee with
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons. There was no objection and it was so

order ed.

SB 8- TAMPERI NG W TH PUBLI C RECORDS

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced SB 8 to be up for consideration.

MR. RICHARD BENAVI DAS, staff to Senator Davis, sponsor, said
that tanmpering with records involving a child under the age of
18 in the care of the state can be very grave. Accurate record
keeping is inportant in light of the case of a five-year-old
Mam girl who disappeared while in the care of the State of
Florida. SB 8 is designed as a disincentive for those who would
falsify those kinds of records.

SENATOR OGAN asked whomthey are targeting with this bill

SENATOR DAVIS replied that the case in Florida raised the
awareness of this issue, but tanpering with records has always
been around. She worked in the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services as a social worker and a nurse for 17 years and has
seen tinmes recordings were not being nade because of heavy case
| oads. After a long tine, you forget sone things that need to go
in the records. It's not always intentional when people tanper
with records. In Alaska, there is no recourse and this bill
makes it a felony to do that.

SENATOR OGAN said he doesn't want to snare people who weren't
cul pabl e.

SENATOR FRENCH said that AS 56.820 says you have to know ngly
nmake a false entry or alter a public record. This bill adds

"who are in the care of the state" to children under 18 - foster
children, etc.

SENATOR DAVI S expl ai ned that she was targeting all children that
fall under Title 47.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- April 25, 2003



CHAI R SEEKI NS said he thought the first section neans that there
had to be an intent to benefit from the alteration or for a
child under the age of 18, etc.

SENATOR THERRI AULT arrived at 1:22 p.m

MR.  BENAVI DAS responded why should soneone get the sane
treatment for falsifying a child s record and possibly causing
harm as soneone that put down that he graduated from a
uni versity when he didn't.

SENATOR OGAN said he didn't know how a child could be harned by
tanpering with records and wondered if there should be a felony
charge if a kid doesn't get hurt.

SENATOR DAVIS responded that a child does not have to be
physically harmed in order to be hurt. If a caseworker says they
have visited a hone and that the child is fine and they actually
never went to the honme, things mght not be going well. "A kid
could very well cone up dead.... W have from tinme to tine
[ heard] where children have died in foster care or in other
treatment hones...."

She informed them that the Ofice of Children's Services is
under scrutiny because they haven't been able to pass the
federal audit. "I think sonmetines other things need to happen
ot her than just a reprinmand or saying you can't do that."

SENATOR OGAN agreed with her that some situations are very
dangerous and that there is a high burnout rate for workers.
However, if you're not a very good record keeper, and sonething
bad happens to the kid and you're accused of sonething, "It's
just additional pressure on that group of professionals... to
all of a sudden be a felon.™

He asked if that mght be a deterrent to getting and keeping
good people, because they don't want to be liable for crimnal
activity if they make a m st ake.

SENATOR DAVIS replied that she didn't think it would be and
filing of information is not the problem "W're talking about
fal sifying records, not poor filing."

SENATOR ELLIS arrived at 1:26 p. m

SENATOR ELLIS asked if a child at school is considered to be in
the care and custody of the state.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- April 25, 2003



SENATOR DAVIS replied no, it doesn't have anything to do wth
keepi ng school records.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if this could be applied to a foster parent
who is not the person who is <charged by law to gather
i nformation.

SENATOR DAVIS replied that there are already |laws on the books
that woul d cover foster parents who were falsifying pay vouchers
or what ever.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he feels there was a better ways to
draft AS 8.15(a)(1) and (2).

SENATOR DAVI S responded that she asked the drafter if there was
sonme other way to do it, but he felt it was the best way. She
offered to let the Departnent of Law |l ook at it.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if she heard any runors to the effect that
this is currently a problemhere in the state.

SENATOR DAVIS replied she has heard sone horror stories and
enphasi zed, "There are cases where this is needed."”

1:39 - 1:40 p.m - at ease

CHAIR SEEKINS noted that both SB 8 and SB 55 anend the sane
section of statute and said that they would take up Senator
Dyson's bill. He said they would hold SB 8.

SB  55- TAMPERI NG W TH PUBLI C RECORDS

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced SB 55 to be up for consideration.

SENATOR DYSON, sponsor of SB 55, said that he and Senator Davis

often think along the sanme lines. H's bill doesn't limt the
sanme issues to just children. He thought deliberately falsifying
records of adults could be a real problem as well. Instances of

rape are of particular concern to him He reported that 35
percent to 40 percent of the rapes that go on in North America
happen in prisons and are sane sex. However, Al aska' s Departnent
of Corrections has had very little of that. "If that's true,
it's something we can be really proud of. | can tell you in
other jurisdictions it's a horrendous problem.."

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- April 25, 2003



He wants to make sure that if we have a less enlightened
Department of Corrections, the nessage is clear that falsifying
records and protecting the adm nistration and bureaucracy from
having to deal with being irresponsible is a problem

He also has received calls from adult children of parents who
are in a care facility for one reason or another and are really
concerned about how their parents are being treated. "Some of
it's ugly. I want it clear with those vulnerable adults that
sonebody that's covering up the abuse of those adults is also
subject to the penalties.”

The difference between his bill and Senator Davis' is that SB 55
allows for the state to go after people who know ngly and
del i berately change the records to cover up or protect abusing
adults. Language on line 9 nmakes it clear that it's with the
intent to conceal a fact material to an investigation or the
provi si on of services.

CHAIR SEEKINS said that SB 55 deals with children's proceedings,
delinquent mnors, child protection or protection of vulnerable
adul ts.

SENATOR ELLIS asked him to elaborate on how organized crine
could be involved and if there is sone suspicion that it is
involved in the Alaska Child Protection System

SENATOR DYSON replied that he doesn't know of anyone who is
all owi ng organi zed crine to go on involving vul nerable adults or
children, but he said his first foster son was prostituted to
Asian flight crews at the Captain Cook and the Westwood where a
significant ring of that was going on. A small town in Southeast
also had a large ring of pedophiles that were providing young
children to tour ship people. He said that was organized crine
and it was with the permssion of the parents and there was a
distinct nonetary advantage to the parents. He has no know edge
that any state officials knew of it or were covering it up.

1:50 - 1:54 p.m - at ease

CHAI R SEEKINS said he wanted to roll SB 55 into SB 8 and to have
Senator French, who was concerned that a child wouldn't be
committing a felony if they falsified their age on their
driver's license, work together with the sponsors on a single
vehi cl e.

CHAI R SEEKINS held SB 55 in conmittee.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- April 25, 2003



SB 161- MONOPOLY AND RESTRAI NT OF TRADE ACTI ONS

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced SB 161 to be up for consideration.

MR. ED SN FFEN, Assistant Attorney General, said that SB 161
anends the existing anti-trust laws that give the attorney
general the right to recover indirect damges on behalf of
consuners who ot herwi se do not have such a renedy.

Under current federal and state anti-trust law, if there is a
conspiracy between two suppliers of a product, that results in
that product's price being overly inflated and that price is
passed on to an inporter, and naybe a distributor and finally to
us as the consuner. The consuner right now has no right of
action to sue the upstream violator. That rule of law was laid
out in a 1977 U'S. Suprene Court case called Illinois Brick
Conmpany v. State of Illinois. The court thought it would be very
difficult to determine how nuch profit was actually passed on
and it would be cunbersone to litigate. Only the inporter could
sue, because they were the ones that purchased the product
directly fromthe anti-trust violators.

In that sane case, the Suprene Court said states were free to
enact their own anti-trust laws to provide for this renedy and
30 states have already done that. Al aska hasn't and that's what
SB 161 does.

He said that these are not just theoretical things that are
happeni ng; they are happening within the state and have cost us
a | ot of noney.

W are involved in multi-state litigation all the tine
along with other states to sue |arge manufacturers of
products, pharnmaceutical products, contact |enses, and
a variety of different consunmer products.

In one case two years ago called the Vitam ns Case,
there were two vitamn nmanufacturers who conspired
with each other to keep the price of vitamns high. W
joined in with 30 other states in that suit and we
reached a settlenment with the vitam n conpanies al ong
wth the other states. States who had these Illinois
Brick repealer statutes got $1 nillion a piece in the
settlenent. States who did not have the statute got
zero. We argued with the settlenent commttee in that
case that we had other laws that would entitle us to

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- April 25, 2003



recovery and we in fact were able to get $100, 000 t hat
we distributed to relevant organizations. But, had we
had a law like this in place, we would have seen a
much larger recovery. W're involved in several cases
now t hat involve these sane kinds of clains.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked for exanples of other cases.

MR. SNI FFEN responded that two others cone to him imedi ately.
One involves a conspiracy anong a bunch of contact |ens
manuf acturers to artificially keep the price high. Another one
is the Nine Wst case that involved the sales of wonen's shoes
that resulted in a lot of nobney going to the states wth
I[I'linois Brick repealer statutes and |less nobney going to the
states without it. He just resolved a case recently involving
conpact music discs where a ot of di stributors and
manuf acturers of mnusic set mninum prices on CDs. They did not
present clainms on behalf of injured consunmers in that case,
because they didn't have this kind of statute. Currently, there
are three other pharmaceutical cases involving conspiracies up a
chain to artificially inflate the price of certain prescription
drugs. Another case they decided not to get involved in because
they didn't have this Jlaw involves sorbates, which are
preservatives that are used in all kinds of foods. "As a whole,
we could nmake big clains on behalf of consuners to recover those
types of danages."”

TAPE 03-30, SIDE B
2:01 p.m

SENATOR OGAN wanted to know how our state laws would reach
across oceans to reach suppliers like OPEC that conspires to set
oil prices.

MR. SNI FFEN replied that is a good question, but in nost cases,
the issues don't involve foreign suppliers. Under state |aw,
ordinary consumers don't have the right to challenge the price
of gas, for exanple, if the conspiracy to keep the price of gas
hi gh occurred upstream However, it's not wunheard of for sone
states to get together and bring causative action against
foreign suppliers of materials.

SENATOR OGAN asked how they reach foreign countries.

MR. SN FFEN repli ed:

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- April 25, 2003



There is a way states <can reach international
boundaries through a lot of nmechanisns.... W can
extend our jurisdiction to conpanies who have a
presence in Al aska and are doing business here. There
are international rules that allow us to do that.

He said it probably wouldn’t happen very often in Al aska unless
we join with other states that are considering doing the sane
thing, but it can be done.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if having subsidiaries in the U S. nakes
t hat possi bl e.

MR. SNl FFEN answered that is correct.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he doesn't think it would work with OPEC
because they conspire to manipulate supply to influence price
they don't set the price.

CHAIR SEEKINS wanted to clarify that the retailer bears no
responsibility in this law, just the persons who are involved in
t he conspiracy.

MR SNIFFEN replied that is correct. The retailer is just
passi ng prices on.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked why |anguage on page 2 would be
del et ed.

MR. SNIFFEN replied that is a good question and there is a
second portion to the bill that renoves from the current anti-
trust that you have to find conduct on behalf of an anti-trust
violator is willful before you can recover treble damages. Ri ght
now, a federal |aw does not have that requirenent and you can
recover three times your danages; state |law has a nuch higher
st andar d.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked how they would go about proving a
conspiracy that is not willful.

MR. SNIFFEN replied conspiracy is alnost always wllful, but
there are also tinmes when you can violate the anti-trust |aw

negligently and recklessly, l|like in the current Bristol Bay
case.

SENATOR THERRIAULT noted that the bill wuld not drop the
finding down to knowingly, it would just drop the willingly.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- April 25, 2003



MR. SNI FFEN responded that would bring this law in Iine with how
federal anti-trust |laws are structured.

SENATOR OGAN asked how this |aw woul d change the way the Bristo
Bay case is litigated.

MR, SNIFFEN said if this law had been in place, it probably
woul dn't have changed a thing. In that case, all the fishernen
had direct damages; they purchased or sold fish directly to the
processors and there wasn't an internediary that prevented them
frombringing their clains.

SENATOR OGAN asked if this would allow the attorney general to
bring a case against a retailer.

MR. SNIFFEN replied the retailer that is passing on the inflated
price from upstream anti-trust behavior would not be affected.
In this instance, the attorney general mght represent the
t housands of consumers who m ght have bought that product at $10
when it shoul d have been $5.

SENATOR THERRI AULT commented the fiscal note doesn't indicate
how much this will cost the state.

MR. SN FFEN explained that the fiscal note is indetermnate,
because the departnent doesn't know how much revenue the bill
will generate. "It's unlikely to cost the state any noney; it's
nore likely to increase revenue, because we're involved in these
cases anyway..."

SENATOR THERRI AULT notioned to pass SB 161 from conmttee with
i ndi vidual reconmendations and attached indeterm nate fiscal
note. There was no objection and it was so ordered.

SB 171-SUI TS & CLAI MS: M LI TARY/ FI RE/ DEFENSE

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced SB 171 to be up for consideration.

M5. GAIL VO GILANDER, Assistant Attorney General, said this bil

covers four areas of governnental energency operations. The
first area is search and rescue. The Al aska State Troopers
conduct about 400 of them each year and they deci de when and how
to initiate a search or rescue and often call on the Nationa

Guard and community resources to assist. This bill would provide
immunity fromtort lawsuits for state and |ocal governnent and

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- April 25, 2003



their enployees when they participate in the rescue activities
(Section 2).

The next topic is about intra-mlitary court clains in response
to an Al aska Suprene Court case, Honsel v. State 2001. In that
case the court departed from the generally held intra-mlitary
tort inmmunity known as the "Feres Doctrine" that provides that
if you are a nenber of a mlitary service, you cannot sue other
menbers of the mlitary service for torts if you are injured. As
an enpl oyee, your renedies are: if you are acting under federa

orders, getting federal workers' conpensation and other benefits
and, if you are under state orders, getting the state's workers

conpensati on benefits.

Most mlitary operations in Alaska are with people carrying out
federal orders. This says you cannot sue in addition to workers’
conpensation renedies; it does not change your entitlenent to
those benefits nor does it <change the anmount of benefits
(Sections 4 -6).

Section 3 provides that tort clains are barred against the state
for acts of the organized mlitia (the Al aska National Guard and
the state mlitia) unless the governor calls them out wunder
Title 26.050. 70.

The third topic of the bill is civil defense and honeland
security. CGvil defense is already provided for in Title 26.
Since the events of 9-11, the civil defense roll has expanded
into honeland security issues, as well. The federal governnent

has expanded and thrown back to the state governnents nore
activity in this area than they used to have. This portion of
the bill seeks to continue an immunity that is already in
statute for civil defense activities and extend it to the
honel and security area. It bars tort clains against governnent
enpl oyees and authorizes volunteers if a honeland security
wor ker sustains danages. It does not affect entitlenent to the
extent of honel and security benefits.

The second portion of that area is that it bars third party tort
claims agai nst governnent enployees and authorized volunteers
for damages unless the person who is injured can denonstrate
malice or reckless indifference by <clear and convincing
evidence. In existing Title 26 there is an exception that has to
do with one area where imunity is not extended. This bill
tracks that in ternms of incorporating exclusion where third
party clains can be asserted in the area of civil defense and
honel and security (sections 7-11).

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- April 25, 2003



Finally, the fourth topic is that of fire managenent and
firefighting activities. Two statutory sections are anmended to
bar tort clains by third parties against state, |ocal governnent
or other firefighting groups and their enployees. This is in
response to two Al aska Suprene Court cases that were decided in
2001, Angaboognuk and Bartek cases, which arose out of the
MIller's Reach Fire. The court diverged from ninth circuit
precedent for other western states that provide imunity for
firefighting activities either through comon I|aw or through

specific statutes. This portion of the bill would have Al aska in
keeping with the other western states that have wild land fire
exposure. After-the-fact litigation is costly to the state to

defend and costly to the state's resources to have people review
every step that is taken and decision that is made during an
energency operation. This bill would immunize the state and
| ocal government enployees that participate in energency
activities (sections 12-13).

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if Section 9 relates to giving
vacci nati ons.

M5. VO GTLANDER said yes, adding there are a nunber of federa
benefits that would provide renmedies to people if they receive
vacci nati ons because of honel and security concerns.

SENATOR OGAN asked if there is a case |law record of precedents
that the court deviated from

M5. VO GTLANDER replied there are ninth circuit cases that
affected fires out of Oegon, California and Womng that
i mmuni zed those activities. There are state statutes or case |aw
in the jurisdictions of California, Kansas, Gklahoma, Montana,
| daho, Del aware, Florida, Indiana, New York and Kentucky.

SENATOR OGAN asked if the Al aska Suprenme Court is supposed to
interpret based on Al aska's constitution and statutes. He asked
if there are any cases in Alaska that have been ruled as having
sovereign imunity and that precedence was departed from

M5. VO GTLANDER replied there sinply has not been that type of
litigation in the state until the Mller's Reach fire. It's
possi bl e that people were under the inpression that there could
not be such a claim made against the state for fire fighting
activity. In the Agnaboognuk case the Al aska Suprene Court
addressed that and sinply looked at the existing statute, AS

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- April 25, 2003



9.50. 250, on waiver of imunity and said they didn't see it in
t hat statute.

This bill would put into statute that the state had
not waived its inmunity for those types of clains and
so the case | aw would then be overruled by the statute
as an annunciation of a public policy in the state of
Al aska.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the TSA enployees who work at the
airport are considered state homel and security workers.

M5. VO GILANDER said she understands that all TSA enpl oyees are
enpl oyed t hrough the Federal Homel and Security Ofice.

COWM SSI ONER BI LL TANDESKE, Departnent of Public Safety, said he
thinks it is appropriate that his departnment is responsible for
search and rescue, but there are a lot of variables involved in
an effort in a state this size. They have an obligation to those
folks for their safety.

| think it's inportant that we nmeke search and rescue
deci sions based on sound search principles and doing
the right thing for the right reasons.... One of the
guiding principles of any |aw enforcenment operation is
don't let a bad situation get worse. If you' re mssing
one, don't end up m ssing three.

COMM SSI ONER TANDESKE said there are a lot of notices of snow
nobi |l ers over due and volunteers find the vast majority of them
He questioned the validity of the famlies that |ost |oved ones
using litigation as a way to find answers about why the system
didn't work.

SENATOR OGAN asked how many planes are listed as mssing in
Al aska.

COWMM SSI ONER TANDESKE replied that he didn't know for sure.

SENATOR OGAN said he had heard around 40 to 50. He asked if they
are in any litigation now over search and rescue issues.

COMM SSI ONER TANDESKE replied that he didn't know, since he had
been with the departnent just three nonths.

MS. VO GTLANDER i nformed nenbers that the Denali H ghway case is
on appeal to the suprene court.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- April 25, 2003



SENATOR OGAN asked if there had been sone disciplinary action
associated with that case. He asked what assurances Al askans
have that these things will be taken care of if they are held
harm ess in such situations.

COMM SSI ONER TANDESKE cl arified that he was aware of the appea

on the Denali case; he thought the question pertained to new
litigation. Wthout getting into specifics, he said that there
was disciplinary action in that case and he would hold his
enpl oyees accountable just as they are in any situation.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked how this bill would have affected the O rum
case specifically.

COM SSI ONER  TANDESKE replied there is a fair anpount of
m si nformati on about that case and he isn't sure how to answer
since he is not an attorney.

CHAIR SEEKI NS recalled that tenperatures were around -50 degrees
when t hat happened.

COWMM SSI ONER TANDESKE replied that is correct.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked if the troopers would normally send out the
snow machines to find soneone at -50 tenperatures.

COWM SSI ONER TANDESKE said not necessarily on a snow machine,
but they would take all circunstances into account before making
a deci si on.

2:45 p. m

CHAI R SEEKINS asked if this bill would hold him harm ess when he
makes a judgnent call about a search or rescue.

COWMM SSI ONER TANDESKE replied he would have to refer to a |ega
mnd to answer that question, but this bill does not change the
statutory responsibility for search and rescue wthin his
depart nment .

CHAI R SEEKINS asked if it would insulate the departnent somewhat
fromacts or om ssions.

M5. VO GILANDER responded that this would inmunize the actions
arising out of the search and rescue. "It would nean that there

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -15- April 25, 2003



could not be a civil law suit for damages, a tort liability
claim"

She explained that the proposed anendnent cleans up |anguage in
the civil and honel and defense sections.

SENATOR FRENCH said he reads the bill as being an absolute bar
to any claim that arises out of the troopers handling a search
and rescue.

TAPE 03-31, SIDE A
2:48 p.m

SENATOR FRENCH said it's possible to imagine a situation where
there is just outright negligence.

COM SSI ONER TANDESKE said he would have to defer to |egal
m nds.

SENATOR OGAN asked how many cases there are for fire fighting.

M5. VO GTLANDER replied the MIler's Reach fire was consoli dated
into one class action case and there is one other claim and one
other lawsuit. She didn't know of a dollar value for either one
of them She is hesitant to comment on MIller's Reach because it
isin trial right now

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if this statute would act as a bar to
protect the state from these types of actions in the fire
fighting area.

M5. VO GTLANDER replied yes, but she noted that this |egislation
is not retroactive.

MR. JEFF JAHNKE, State Forester, said that there are about 150
mllion acres to protect and they get between 500 and 600 forest
fires per year. Their success depends on a safe and effective
initial attack to prevent small fires from becomng big fires.
SB 171 would provide imunity for firefighters fighting wld
land fires. This is inportant for two mjor reasons. One, it
would allow the firefighters to focus on safe and effective
firefighting rather than having to weigh the potential for a
| awsuit in every decision they make during their initial attack

Second, it would reassure the state firefighters that they have
the sane protection and inmmunity that their |ocal and federal

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- April 25, 2003



counterparts, who are often fighting wwth them have. It would
reduce reluctance to becom ng a | eader.

SENATOR THERRI AULT notioned to adopt anendnent #1, sponsored by
the attorney general's office.

M5. VO GTLANDER explained that the recitations referring to the
federal agencies are not germane to inmunizing state and | ocal
enpl oyees. The proposed anendnent nekes clear that the bill
pertains to officers who are nenbers of the state's organized
mlitia on state active duty.

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced there is no objection to the anmendnent
and it is adopted. He said he would hold the bill because a
nunber of other people indicated intent to testify. There being
no further business to conme before the commttee, he adjourned
the neeting at 3:00 p.m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- April 25, 2003



